Request for Proposal - Key Attributes

The Request for Proposal (RFP) should contain the following sections.  Examples will be provided to project teams in need of samples with links in this document.
RFP Sections

Overview section

· Purpose of this RFP

· Explanation of the company (if possible, stated in the context of this RFP)

· Using th Business Case document, include the following:

· The current business problem

· Who the business problem affects (preferably the end customer)

· The impact of the problem and the related business opportunity it presents.

· a project statement that in one paragraph explains:
what needs to be done to sucessfully solve the problem

when it needs to be done by (best, worse, and expected case)

· List of proposed project delievrables, performance metrics and expected completion dates as outlined in the separate template for deliverables and performance metrics

· List of decision makers in the final decision analysis

· Dates for the RFP process 

· Date for vendor response

· Budgeted date for detailed analysis of vendors

· Budgeted date for vendor selection 

· Statement requesting the vendor abide by the proposal framework as specified in the RFP when drafting their responses

· Statement regarding the length of time for which the proposal with be valid

· Declarations of confidentiality and nondisclosure (with attached forms to sign)

· Process to answer questions and person to send all requests

Proposal Requirements

· Using the milestones as outlined in the Overview section of the RFP, the business requirements for the product/service should be stated in as fine as detail as possible.  

Evaluation Criteria

· State the evaluation criteria and the associated questions to support the evaluation (see separate document on creating evaluation criteria and questions)

General Company Procedures

· Include key contractual statements that are expected to be included in a final contract with the vendor (see document regarding standard contractual statements)
Due Diligence Procedures

Evaluation Criteria 

Prior to performing due diligence, the project team should identify the key evaluation criteria for the external party/vendor under consideration.  These criteria will drive the questions asked of external parties/vendors in the request for proposal and the final decision analysis for selection (see separate documents for these activities).

It may also be useful to rate the evaluation criteria from the standpoint of importance.  Such a rating would be used in the final decision analysis (see separate document).

Suggested Evaluation Criteria 
Below are suggested evaluation criteria, along with the associated sample questions to ask in a request for proposal:

Cost

· Please respond to the pricing of the following deliverables.  Please note for this request, a table of deliverables should be provided to ensure pricing of the deliverables is closed ended and standardized for all responses.  If possible, please use the Requirements/Performance Measures document.

· Are there any costs outside of the deliverable worksheet that should be considered as part of this project?

· What methodology did you use to estimate the size of the project (e.g., past project, function points for software development, etc.)?

· Please provide the blended rate for your project team or, preferably, the rate per personnel type (e.g., programmer, manager, etc.)

· Are there any caps on T&E expenses in the contract?

· What is your estimated of the expected maintenance for this project two years after the project ends?

Demonstrated experience of the proposed project team 

· Please provide examples of similar projects completed by the project team that are of a similar size, scope, duration, and complexity

· Please provide resumes for the proposed project team

· Can we interview the team members prior to the start of the project?

· How many projects has your proposed team worked on together?

· Please provide references in areas where you have worked in the same project domain as this project

· Please provide past examples of deliverables on similar projects

· Please provide references from your most recent two projects

· What training do you provide to your employees, in particular those expected to serve this account.

Vendor Location

· Typically, where are your services performed?

· Will the activities take place at our site, at one off site location or at multiple off site locations?

· Can we tour any office space where your project team would be working (to check office ergonomics)?
Proven project management ability for managers assigned to the project

· Please provide resumes for the project team

· Please provide a project plan including the tasks, deliverable/milestone date completion, and project team allocation to tasks.

· What are the top three risks you can identify regarding this project and the associated mitigation plans?

· Do you utilize a standard project management methodology and if so, what is it based upon?

Established methodology for development 

· Do you have a standardized method for completing the project deliverables (e.g., software development lifecycle) and if so, please describe.

Technical knowledge of project area for persons assigned to the project

· Questions should be focused on the technical deliverables and requirements of the project.

Ability to meet deadlines

· Please provide examples of similar projects completed with similar deadlines as this project.

· Are you expecting to "crash" the project with additional personnel at any given stages of the project in order to meet the project deadlines?

Strong written and verbal skills

· Please provide resumes of your project team

· Please provide past examples of deliverables on similar projects

Skilled in project documentation (important mainly for software development projects)

· Please provide past examples of deliverables on similar projects

· Does your organization utilize a standard methodology for documenting project deliverables?

Proven customer satisfaction

· Describe your approach to client service.

· Do you complete customer satisfaction surveys of previous customers?  If so, please provide a copy

· Please provide references from your most recent two projects

· Please provide references in areas where you have worked in the project domain

· What is your staff turnover ratio for the past 12 months?

· How do you manage staff turnover (elective and non elective)?

Financial stability 

· Please provide a recent financial statement including, at a minimum, the most recent balance sheet, income statement, cash flows statement, and notes to the financial statements

· Are there any pending enforcement actions by any Federal, state, or local governments?

· Is there any material litigation pending against your organization?

· Provide a brief history of your organization.

· Has your company been in business for more than three years?

· Would the ORGANIZATION be the major customer of your company assuming you were selected for this project?

· Please provide a recent copy of your D&B report or your D&B number.

· Roughly how many clients do you currently serve (in total)?

· Roughly how many active clients do you currently serve?

· How was the company grown (organically, through mergers and acquisitions, or a combination of both)?

· What percentage of your revenues are derived from (area in which they are being hired)?

· Is the company privately or publicly owned?

· If private, who are the major investors?

· If public, what is your ticker number?

Interest of vendor to establish a long term relationship with the ORGANIZATION / Ability to partner with this vendor in a strategic alliance to complement the ORGANIZATION's core competencies

· How is your company's strategic focus compatible with the strategic focus and business objectives of the ORGANIZATION?

· If applicable, please explain how this alliance provides complimentary capabilities to the ORGANIZATION

· Please discuss your previous alliance experience

· Provide a brief synopsis of your corporate culture along with a proposed plan to bridge any culture gaps, if any

Ability for vendor to work within our corporate culture

· Have you worked for the ORGANIZATION in the past?  If so, please provide references.

· Have you worked for other nonprofit organizations in the past?

· Provide a brief synopsis of your corporate culture along with a proposed plan to bridge any culture gaps, if any
Software Development Experience

· Please describe your software development lifecycle process?

· What level of Capability Maturity Model are you?…have you been rated? 

· What activities, if any, will you run in parallel?

· What exemplary skills does the project team associated with this project have in the area of:

· Analyst expertise

· Creative Design

· Application experience

· Platform experience

· What is the expected maintenance for this system for two years after the project and can you provide a plan to staff this maintenance?

Additional Procedures
In addition to asking questions in the request for proposal, the following additional procedures should be completed in reviewing the selected external party/vendor.

· Obtain and review a recent D&B report

· Review www.morningstar.com, www.company.sleuth.com, www.vault.com, www.newslink.org, and www.localbusiness.com reports to identify any recent business/financial articles regarding the company

